Public Document Pack

"l monmouthshire
W sir fynwy

County Hall

Rhadyr
Usk

NP15 1GA

Friday, 21 June 2019

Notice of special meeting

Strong Communities Select Committee

Invitation extended to members of Democratic Services

Committee

Monday, 1st July, 2019 at 2.00 pm,
Conference Room - Usk, NP15 1GA

THERE WILL BE A PRE MEETING FOR MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 30 MINUTES

PRIOR TO THE START OF THE MEETING

AGENDA
Item No | Item Pages
PART A — SCRUTINY AND CRIME DISORDER MATTERS
No matters to discuss
PART B — STRONG COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE
1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. To consider a Call-In relating to the Individual Cabinet Member Decision
dated 12th June 2019 regarding the Staffing Structure - Local Democracy
and Business Support. The following papers are attached for
consideration.
4, Copy of the Call-In request 1-2
5. Copy of the Cabinet report and decision log 3-26
6. Copy of Chief Officer notes on recommendations from Democratic 27 - 28
Services Committee
7. Copy of the Call-In mechanism 29 -30




Paul Matthews

Chief Executive / Prif Weithredwr



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS:

County Councillors: P. Clarke
L.Dymock
D. Dovey
A. Easson
L. Guppy
R. Harris
V. Smith
J.Treharne
A. Webb

Public Information

Access to paper copies of agendas and reports

A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard
copy of this agenda.

Watch this meeting online
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC.

Welsh Language

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or
English. We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your
needs.


http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council

Our purpose

Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities
Objectives we are working towards

Giving people the best possible start in life

A thriving and connected county

Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment
Lifelong well-being

A future focused council

Our Values

Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that
affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do
something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t
answer immediately we’'ll try to connect you to the people who can help — building trust and
engagement is a key foundation.

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not
seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and
consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining
why we did what we did.

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and
efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new
ways of working.

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved
so we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers,
but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the
things that most positively impact our people and places.



Monmouthshire Scrutiny Committee Guide

Role of the Pre-meeting

1. Why is the Committee scrutinising this? (background, key issues)

2. What is the Committee’s role and what outcome do Members want to achieve?
3. Is there sufficient information to achieve this? If not, who could provide this?

- Agree the order of questioning and which Members will lead

- Agree questions for officers and questions for the Cabinet Member

Questions for the Meeting

Scrutinising Performance Scrutinising Policy

1.

How does performance compare with previous
years? Is it better/worse? Why?

. How does performance compare with other

councils/other service providers? Is it
better/worse? Why?

. How does performance compare with set

targets? Is it better/worse? Why?

. How were performance targets set? Are they

challenging enough/realistic?

. How do service users/the public/partners view

the performance of the service?

. Have there been any recent audit and

inspections? What were the findings?

. How does the service contribute to the

achievement of corporate objectives?

. Is improvement/decline in performance linked to

an increase/reduction in resource? \What
capacity is there to improve?

Who does the policy affect ~ directly and
indirectly? Who will benefit most/least?

What is the view of service
users/stakeholders? Do they believe it will
achieve the desired outcome?

What is the view of the community as a whole
- the ‘taxpayer’ perspective?

What methods were used to consult with
stakeholders? Did the process enable all
those with a stake to have their say?

What practice and options have been
considered in developing/reviewing this policy?
What evidence is there to inform what works?

Does this policy align to our corporate
objectives, as defined in our corporate plan?

Have all relevant sustainable development,
equalities and safeguarding implications been
taken into consideration? For example, what
are the procedures that need to be in place to
protect children?

How much will this cost to implement and what
funding source has been identified?

How will performance of the policy be
measured and the impact evaluated.

Questions for the Committee to conclude...

Do we have the necessary information to form conclusions/make recommendations to the executive,
council, other partners? If not, do we need to:
(i Investigate the issue in more detail?
(ii) Obtain further information from other witnesses — Executive Member, independent expert,
members of the local community, service users, regulatory bodies...
(iii) Agree further actions to be undertaken within a timescale/future monitoring report...

General Questions....

Empowering Communities
e How are we involving local communities and empowering them to design and deliver services to suit
local need?
e Do we have regular discussions with communities about service priorities and what level of service the
council can afford to provide in the future?




Service Demands
e How will policy and legislative change affect how the council operates?
e Have we considered the demographics of our council and how this will impact on service delivery and
funding in the future?

Financial Planning
e Do we have robust medium and long-term financial plans in place?
e Are we linking budgets to plans and outcomes and reporting effectively on these?

Making savings and generating income
e Do we have the right structures in place to ensure that our efficiency, improvement and
transformational approaches are working together to maximise savings?
e How are we maximising income? Have we compared other council’s policies to maximise income and
fully considered the implications on service users?
e Do we have a workforce plan that takes into account capacity, costs, and skills of the actual versus
desired workforce?




b | Agenda ltem 4

i ey

CALL IN REQUEST

1. SUBJECT: SMEfiNG Srenoruds” — hochr beaockAny And
Buiscvess Subloer ,

2. DATE OF CABINET MEETING:
127 dunte o1

3. CABINET DECISION:
M Petommendbrnens AlRLoveD Conri-ey t+p THzZ

AgLsi=d. PiscommrsuhATIONS ot T SewwcelAdne
S epvices Comant 1—1"*51.-:,

4. REASON(S) FOR CALL- IN:. .
TS U F1CIENT ConSLLTATON w1 TH Conerte Mirbaes who wrt B Nilezriy Ahcny

SHotr Cilewiring OF THE bitocairti Rocess By Retemenie ISsue TD 4 Saons
CABNET Mem B DEeiSien L ESuertNG 10 INStelbretent Celour7ily TAL Y lg.ﬂce"

TS B vt Mol éth VGven 1o s fRAcTCM. Aud bEFML. LERUReMEWeS oF

Councie Buswusts pwd IdfoerAtion boonsien . '
InNSwuthcigwr THOLEU#T Grvew To THE Ay of STAFF ALSIWLE O N TS RFSu s
INCLPASET IN noR h oS Foe arthze Starf .

%Tiﬁﬂwéuw &f cAte Lor T PHSichL Avbd Menrpr Hernd Mﬂlumg.dsﬁ,u

5.

DATE RECEIVED:

6. MEMBERS CALLING-IN: ,
(The Chairman of a Select Committee or any three non-executive members)

Name Ward .
Cilr Ao Baviess CR N EINE LIALD CAY lea
Cffiij David VAR wEsTES 1) Q@ AL Dieo
ClUr MARTYRS) GROUCLTY L~ AVSDoLu N

Please identify which Select Committee should hear the call.in based on the
reasons for the call In request

_ELONOMUY 4 DEVELOPMENT invett .S Committee

Page 1



» Ao LoHcRer Answens To SLRESrions Anud Conpsens hLorr y F
Tohe Semoe
Pootosing THE CebinbeS . e

SeIr was AGR@FD Wi e Bewocldni ScrricessS LosntrrER Thar THE
Pewesmisation &F DavctiTit scrnerS witws Nor de THKEN O R

s bur wones A Pofstiets 15 CAGZNST &R

Q, wgrus Mew bR Aas:
TUE BSme LHS Cetorist

‘FIM-L ECunlisn TH1S WAS NOT 1ia gmentre=d And
To Aud TAKEN By 4 Sintrs CANET iAo bR .

Auar’h—ﬂe ThudsTRATION ©F A WALk o+
Daopsmé Hocess

C=slecr For THE

e

Page 2



e abed

“ monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
SUBJECT: STAFFING STRUCTURE - LOCAL DEMOCRACY AND BUSINESS
SUPPORT
MEETING: INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER DECISION

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR PAUL JORDAN
DATE: 12th June 2019

1. PURPOSE:

To propose staffing changes within the Local Democracy Section and Business Support Teams which will increase the capacity in
policy development and scrutiny increasing the support provided to members and improving the robustness of forward planners.
This will be done by reducing administrative tasks and capitalising on progress made in recent years with the Modern Government

system, the live streaming of meetings and changes to resourcelink.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That a new role of Policy and Scrutiny Officer be created

2.2 That 2.47 FTE positions of Democratic Services Officer be deleted

2.3 That 2.0 FTE posts of Committee Officer be created

2.4 Thatnew 1.6 FTE positions of Member Support Officer be created

2.5 Thatthe 0.6 FTE position of Administrative Assistant (Chairman and Leaders) be deleted

2.6 That 1.0 FTE positions of Members Secretary be deleted

2.7  That the Chairman and Leaders Secretary assumes management responsibility of member support
2.8  That the Senior Democratic Services Officer be redesignated as Senior Democracy and Business Support Officer and assumes line

management for the Business Support Team

1

G wa)| epuaby



7 abed

2.9

2.10

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

That job descriptions and pay bands within the Business Support Team are consolidated and the two support staff currently part of
the Enterprise and Resources directorates are transferred to this central team.

In the event that officers are not successful in securing a position in the new structure or through redeployment, that any redundancy
costs will be met from service budgets in the first instance but if this is not possible, that a report be brought to Cabinet seeking
funding from reserves.

KEY ISSUES:

The Local Democracy Team has benefitted from advances in technology in recent years: The adoption of the Modern Government
ICT system has reduced the amount of time it takes to compile agendas, these are no longer printed which has brought about
financial savings and a reduction in administrative duties; members expenses are now submitted and approved electronically, and;
live streaming means that the production of minutes is easier as democratic services officers are able to refer back to the meeting
recording to produce a record of discussions. This means that minutes of some meetings such as Select Committees can be
produced after the event.

A report from Wales Audit Office carried out in 2018 has highlighted a lack of capacity in the scrutiny function which has been
supported by comments from members. This is likely to be exacerbated as the authority begins to deliver more functions through
regional and collaborative arrangements such as the Cardiff Capital Region which will require joint scrutiny.

The Democratic Services Committee has been looking at the extent to which our current arrangements facilitate citizen engagement
with local democracy. They have concluded there is a need for fundamental change in how we attract the public in debating major
issues. The fifteen minute public open forum provides an opportunity for the public to offer a view on the agenda subject matter or to
suggest items for future scrutiny. However, it cannot serve as the only mechanism to engage people in democratic debate. Creating
a new Policy and Scrutiny Officer role would enable more to be done to engage people earlier in debating and shaping solutions to
the pressing issues in our communities and to secure earlier public involvement in debating potentuially contentious issues to identify
alternative solutions and secure buy-in where needed.

A new role of Policy and Scrutiny Officer aligned with both the Performance Manager and Scrutiny Manager would facilitate greater
focus on assisting officers improve the quality of reports and developing evaluations which would give Cabinet and Council robust
evidence about the longer term impact of decisions whilst enabling Select Committees to draw on these evaluations to inform

2



G abed

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

scrutiny work programmes. This officer would attend committees and other meetings to advise the chair providing enhanced scrutiny
capacity. They would would assume responsibility for keeping a note of the meeting reducing the need for two officers to be present
at Select Committees and enabling a formal minute to be produced from contemporaneous notes and the meeting recording. The
minutes of select committee meetings would be produced in a more concise format focusing on lines of questioning, responses and
subsequent action points.

The existing role of Democratic Services Officers would be removed and replaced by Committee Officers. The Senior Democratic
Services Officer will continue to manage this function and will also assume line management responsibility for the business support
team who provide support to senior managers. This will improve alignment between officers and councillors and in particular help
improve the robustness and clarity of the forward planner.

A repurposed Member Support Officer role will replace the Members Secretary role and will provide a more professional internal
customer support for elected members, acting as a source of information, arranging appointments and members training whilst
focusing on broader development which would enhance the experience and professional development of members during their time
on Council. This team would provide digital first aid to councillors, championing the use of technology such as Skype and making it
easier for members to attend meetings remotely in line with recent changes to the constitution, reducing travel time and the financial
costs of meetings. They would also take a more pro-active role and a liaison between officer and political decision-making ensuring
earlier and more detailed forward planners to improve involvement and decision-making.

These changes will result in the deletion of some posts. It also sees the creation of new opportunities to take the service forward
with refreshed purpose and pace. In the event that colleagues are unsuccessful in secruring positions within the new structure, then
opportunities will be sought through the council’s protection of employment policy. In the event that this is not possible there could
potentially be redundancy costs.

Those posts that are being amended or deleted are shown below alongside the present arrangements. Role profiles for those
positions which have been substantially amended. Pay bands for new roles are subject to the outcome of job evaluation



9 abed

As Is Proposed
Post Band | FTE Post Band | FTE
Local Democracy Manager J 1 Local Democracy Manager | J 1
Senior Democratic Services G 1 Senior Democracy and G y revised
Officer Business Support Officer role
Democractic Services Officer E 2.47 | delete Committee Officer E 2.0 | newrole
Chairman and Leaders Chairman and Leader’s
E 1.0 E 1.0

Secretary Secretary
Admln Assistant (Leader and C 054 | delete
Chairman)
Members Secretary D 1.0 delete Member Support Officer D 1.54 | new role
Scrutiny Manager I 1 Scrutiny Manager I 1

Policy and Scrutiny Officer G 1
Administrative Assistant
(Enterprise and Resources) D 16 delete
Business Support Officer E 0.6 Business Support Officer E 2.2 :g;gsed
Cost (inc on-costs) £308,503 Cost (inc on-costs) £326,969

Job descriptions for the new and revised roles are contained in appendix 1. These are subject to job evaluation. Costs for the proposed
structure are shown as scale points applicable in 2019-20. This will rise to £341,426 when all staff reach the top of their scale points. The
proposed structure is shown in the diagram below:



Structure (as is)

(only shows teams affected by the proposals, not all of those within the responsibility of the Head of Policy and Governance)

Head of Policy
and Governance

v

Chief Executive's
PA (0.6 FTE)

Local Democracy
Manager

2 x Members

Scrutiny Manager

Business Support

Local Democracy

Chairman and

Senior Democracy

U . .
— Officer . . Secretaries -
g (0.6 FTE) Officer (elections) Leaders Secretary (1.0 FTE) Officer
@
~ 2 x Administrative 1 x Asministrative 3 x Democractic
— Assistants Assistant Services Officers
(1.6 FTE) (0.6 FTE) (2.47 FTE)




Structure (proposed)

(only shows teams affected by the proposals, not all of those within the responsibility of the Head of Policy and Governance)

Head of Policy
and Governance

v

Chief Executive's Local Democracy Scrutiny Manager
PA (0.6 FTE) Manager Y J
|
I | ]

Local Democracy Chairman and Ser;':c; gj:::srscy Policy and

Officer (elections) Leaders Secretary Support Officer Scrutiny Officer
T
&
D Sui;ol\:lte(r;]ﬁt‘)ii(rars | [ 2 x Committee
fo ) (1.54 FTE) Officers (2.0 FTE)

3 x Business
— Support Officers
(2.2 FTE)




6 obed

REASONS:

To deliver ensure effective staffing arrangements that will enable robust decision-making and scrutiny alongside a professional
support service for councillors that maximises the potential of digital technology and offers greater opportunity for member
development.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

The changes will result in an increase in costs of £18,468 per full year in 2019-20 rising to £25,321 once all employees reach the top
of their respective pay spine. This will be afforded within departmental budgets.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS (INCORPORATING EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY,
SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

The report has no direct impact upon front-line services and as a result a full assessment has not been deemed necessary
CONSULTEES:

Senior Leadership Team
Cabinet

Unison / GMB

Staff impacted by the changes
People Services

Department Accountant

Staff consultation has resulted in a number of amendments to the draft role profiles that had been produced and shared with staff as
part of a two week consultation.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:



0T obed

10.

None

AUTHOR:
Matthew Gatehouse, Head of Policy and Governance

CONTACT DETAILS:
Tel: 01633 644397
E-mail: matthewgatehouse@monmouthshire.gov.uk



Appendix 1

ROLE TITLE: Policy and Scrutiny Officer (New)
Permanent

POST ID: tbc

GRADE: Band G - (Subject to Job Evaluation)

HOURS: full-time / part-time (Monday to Friday)

The purpose of this role

To ensure that the council’s policy and scrutiny functions provide an effective mechanism to
identify and evaluate evidence, improve services and involve people in the scrutiny and decision-
making processes.

Expectations and outcomes

To work with members of select committees and officers to contribute to policy development and
improve the performance and delivery of council services

To provide advice to committee members using legislative, policy and research expertise by
analysing information and providing advice and guidance to members

To assist the development of a scrutiny work programme which is clearly aligned to the priorities
and policy framework of the council alongside the issues of greatest importance to the
community.

To support improved use of evidence in the evaluation and scrutiny of council services
Your responsibilities are to

1)  Support the development of the scrutiny work programme, giving regard to the priorities of
the council as outlined in the policy framework, alongside issues of importance to local
communities. This will involve informal engagement and arranging consultation with key
stakeholders, and developing these proposals for scrutiny.

2)  Support constructive working relations between officers and the council’s cabinet and
select committees to facilitate meaningful scrutiny.

3) Ensure that committees and sub-groups comply with all constitutional and legislative
requirements by providing pro-active advice to the committee and officers.

4)  Provide a concise note of scrutiny meetings which clearly capture the challenge,
questioning and any resulting recommendations, ensuring that these are used to inform
any subsequent reports to council or cabinet.

5) Contribute to any working or sub-groups ensuring that these are well-evidenced and
impartial identifying and engaging experts and evidence and producing reasoned, well-
written reports with practical recommendations.

9
Page 11



10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

Deliver reviews and evaluations that are well-evidenced, objective and impartial. This
involves scoping reviews, project managing reviews, identifying and liaising with key
witnesses, evidence gathering in support of scrutiny reviews and producing well reasoned
reports with practical recommendations.

Work effectively with elected members and senior officers using integrity, diplomacy,
confidence and sound judgement and act appropriately and in line with the member/officer
behaviours protocol. This requires maintaining the confidentiality of personal and sensitive
information in a political environment.

Work with colleagues across the organisation to assist in ensuring that the Council’s
decision-making is robust, transparent and understandable to the public.

Attend meetings of select committees, sub-groups, working groups, pre-meetings
providing advice and presenting reports as required.

Provide independent and impartial advice and guidance to select committee members,
including guidance on questioning strategies and the discharge of their democratic roles
and constitutional and governance issues.

Assist with the development of partnership working and collaborative scrutiny with other
local authorities, public bodies and partner organisations, collecting information and data
and preparing issues for discussion.

Maintain awareness of changes in legislation, policy and practice in respect of the scrutiny
function

To maintain an in-depth and current knowledge of overview and scrutiny and other local
government developments, participating in training and development activities to enhance
competence within job role.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

10
Page 12



ROLE TITLE: Committee Officer (New)

Permanent
POST ID: tbc
GRADE: Band E — (Subject to Job Evaluation)
HOURS: full-time / part-time (Monday to Friday)

The purpose of this role

To support open and transparent local democracy and governance by providing effective and
accurate administration of council meetings by arranging work programmes, agendas, ensuring
timely dispatch of information and providing an accurate record of meetings and decisions.

Expectations and outcomes

To work closely with elected members and senior officers of the council to contribute to effective
governance and decision making arrangements.

To ensure the effective and timely collation, quality assurance and distribution of agenda for a
wide range of meetings

To maintain and working knowledge of the council’s constitution to ensure that chairs and
members

Your responsibilities are to

1)  Carry out preparatory work necessary for successful and robust local decision-making,
taking the lead on managing the agenda process for meetings and liaising with Chief
Officers, Heads of Service, members and senior managers in the organisation.

2) Ensure that all documentation (e.g. agendas, decision logs, minutes and public notices) is
produced, despatched and published efficiently and on time in accordance with agreed
timescales using the Modern Government ICT System.

3) Be proactive in advising the chair and members on procedural matters and interpretation
of the constitution to ensure effective meetings with clear outcomes

4) To be able to provide independent and impartial advice and guidance to select committee
members in the absence of the Scrutiny Manager and Policy and Scrutiny Officer,
including providing guidance on questioning strategies

5) Produce a minute of meetings and accurately record decisions made in accordance with
the Council’s constitution.

6) Initiate the follow-up of agreed actions agreed ensuring that appropriate officers are clear
about responsibilities arising from decisions and recommendations.

11
Page 13



10)
11)

12)

13)

14)
15)
16)

17)

18)

19)

Work closely with Business Support Officers to ensure that forward planners look to the
long-term, are fully populated and inform effective democratic processes

Contribute to promoting and developing opportunities for digital services including the
effective operation of ICT systems to manage agendas, calendars, reports, decisions and
minutes.

Operating the systems for live-streaming and recording meetings seeking to resolve
problems where necessary to ensure that the political process is open and accessible

Support elected members in all aspects of their role

Provide support to, and liaise with, a range of committees and outside bodies which have
county councillors as part of their membership.

Working with others to deliver training and support for councillors using ICT and other
digital tools that will assist them in performing their roles

Work with outside bodies, partners and other local authorities for the successful delivery of
services.

Promote increased involvement and engagement with members of the public
To assist with the administration of elections and electoral registration when required.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

12
Page 14



ROLE TITLE: Member Support Officer (New)

Permanent
POST ID: tbc
GRADE: Band D — (Subject to Job Evaluation)
HOURS: full-time / part-time (Monday to Friday)

The purpose of this role

To employ a pro-active approach to the delivery of business and administrative support to senior
managers and elected members of the council including the effective use of technology and
management of forward planners.

Expectations and outcomes

To work closely with senior managers and elected members to ensure effective business support
which contributes to effective governance and decision-making.

To co-ordinate the flow of communication between senior managers, elected members,
community councils and citizens.

To maintain a good knowledge of the technology used by a modern organisation and ensure that
this is deployed to maximise the efficient and effective use of capacity and capability time and
available capacity.

Your responsibilities are to:

1)  Work pro-actively with elected members to manage electronic diaries for council meetings
and appointments to outside bodies helping ensure efficient use of capacity;

2) Assist with travel arrangements for members including attendance at conferences and
events

3) Arrange, co-ordinate and facilitate meetings on behalf of elected members, leadership
team and other senior managers;

4) Produce documents to strict deadlines and ensuring a high standard of accuracy and
presentation;

5) Coordinate and publish the agenda and decision for individual cabinet member decisions
in accordance with the constitution and relevant legislation, updating the fowrad plan and
liaising with officers and the business support team to ensure the plan is accurate and
reports and submitted on time.

6) To arrange and promote civic and fundraising events on behalf of the Chairman of the
Council

13
Page 15



10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

22)

23)

24)

To meet civic heads and senior officers and visitors from other organisations on behalf of
the chairman and leader.

To make travel arrangements on behalf of the chairman and effectively co-ordinate
attendance at civic events

Provide assistance in making arrangements for events including venue hire and
arrangements for catering and audio-visual equipment where required;

Be part of a network of officers delivering pro-active responses to queries from internal and
external customers which minimises the number of hand-offs required to other parts of the
organisations;

Maintain an awareness of the priorities and key issues being dealt with by the
organisation;

Co-ordinate timely, accurate and considered responses to correspondence on behalf of
senior leaders and elected members managing communications and identifying
opportunities to improve processes where necessary;

Provide support with elections including registration and assisting with postal votes

Dealing with enquiries from community and town councils, ensuring that they understand
how to log queries on the My Monmouthshire systems and ensuring a response from
officers where neccessary

Respond to e-mails and letters on behalf of elected members and senior managers where
necessary;

Provide information management support for Cabinet and other elected members ensuring
effective document management, storage and retrieval in accordance with the General
Data Protection Regulation;

Set up and support the technology for video conferencing and tele-conference calls
ensuring that software and hardware is set up in advance of meetings;

Provide digital first aid to senior managers and elected members to ensure they can
maximise the benefits of the available technology and maintain productivity throughout the
working week;

Use financial systems to place orders, pay invoices and maintain oversight of small
budgets where required;

Ensure councillors DBS checks are in place and liaise with the information commissioners
office to ensure councillors GDPR registrations are in place

Deal with Freedom of Information requests related to councillors in accordance with
statutory processes and timescales

Prepare paperwork to ensure that councillors and co-opted members are paid allowances
and expenses in line with guidance from the Independent Rumneration Panel for Wales.

Be able to set up live streaming of meetings and upload meeting recordings to the
council’s YouTube channel where appropriate.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

14
Page 16



25) Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

26) Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

27) Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

15
Page 17



ROLE TITLE: Business Support Officer

Permanent
POST ID: tbc
GRADE: Band E
HOURS: full-time / part-time (Monday to Friday)

Expectation and Outcomes of this Role:-

To work closely with senior managers and elected members to ensure effective business support
which contributes to effective governance and decision-making.

To co-ordinate the flow of communication between senior managers, elected members, community
councils and citizens.

To maintain a good knowledge of the technology used by a modern organisation and ensure that
this is deployed to maximise the efficient and effective use of capacity and capability time and
available capacity.

Your responsibilities are to:-

1) Manage forward planners for directorate management teams and senior leadership team

ensuring that these look to the long-term, are fully populated and are clearly
communicated to the local democracy team to inform effective democratic processes;

Work pro-actively with senior managers to manage diaries and appointments helping
ensure efficient use of capacity across the working week;

Co-ordinate agendas for management teams ensuring that papers are available and clear
records of discussions are kept where required;

Arrange, co-ordinate and facilitate meetings on behalf of leadership team and other senior
managers producing agendas and taking minutes;

To compile and collate complex documents to strict deadlines and ensuring a high
standard of accuracy and presentation;

Compile, type and format reports and documents to the high standards expected by
businesses and residents taking an active role in quality assurance and standards;

Provide assistance in making arrangements for community engagement events including
venue hire and arrangements for catering and audio-visual equipment where required;

Be part of a network of officers delivering pro-active responses to queries from internal and
external customers which minimises the number of hand-offs required to other parts of the
organisations;

Maintain an awareness of the priorities and key issues being dealt with by the
organisation;

16
Page 18



10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

22)

Co-ordinate timely, accurate and considered responses to correspondence on behalf of
senior leaders managing communications and identifying opportunities to improve
processes where necessary;

Respond to e-mails and letters on behalf of Chief Officers where necessary;

Provide information management support for the leadership team ensuring effective
document management, storage and retrieval in accordance with the General Data
Protection Regulation;

Co-ordinate Freedom of Information and Subject Access Requests working closely with
the authority’s Data Protection Officer;

Set up and support the technology for video conferencing and tele-conference calls
ensuring that software and hardware is set up in advance of meetings;

Provide digital first aid to senior managers and elected members to ensure they can
maximise the benefits of the available technology and maintain productivity throughout the
working week;

Be a digital champion in the field of business administration, maintaining awareness and
developing the skills necessary to ensure that officers and members are able to benefit
from advances in technology;

Use financial systems to place orders, pay invoices and maintain oversight of small
budgets where required:;

Be able to set up live streaming of meetings and upload meeting recordings to the
council’s YouTube channel where appropriate.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

17
Page 19



ROLE TITLE: Senior Democracy and Business Support Officer

Permanent
POST ID: tbc
GRADE: Band G - (Revised JD Subject to Job Evaluation)
HOURS: full-time (Monday to Friday)

The purpose of this role

To support open and transparent local democracy and governance by co-ordinating the effective

and accurate administration of council meetings, forward planners, actions and decision logs and
coordinating administrative support to the senior leadership team to facilitate the effective forward
planning of effective working between members and senior officers.

Expectations and outcomes

To co-ordinate close working between elected members and senior officers of the council to
contribute to effective governance and decision making arrangements.

To ensure and oversee the effective and timely collation, quality assurance and distribution of
agenda for a wide range of meetings involving members and senior leaders

To maintain and working knowledge of the council’s constitution to ensure that chairs and
members have a clear understanding of the process and procedure underpinning their roles

Your responsibilities are to:

1)  Manage and coordinate the administration of the councils democratic system and support
to the senior leadership team ensuring the effective preparation of agendas and minutes in
a timely manner using technology to maximise efficiency

2) Provide advice and support to all members on matters of the constitution and other issues
pertinent to the activities of members.

3) Directly administer and minute council, cabinet, standards committee and political
leadership group and any of the other committees to ensure an equal spread of committee
coverage by the team.

4)  Provide line management to Business Support Officers to enable the effective co-
ordination of all aspects of support to the senior leadership team

5) Ensure that forward planners look to the long-term, are fully populated and inform effective
democratic processes

6) Ensure that action and recommendations coming out of committees are addressed by the
appropriate officer and updates provided to the next appropriate meeting.

7) To be responsible for the supervision, training, development, performance management
and health and safety for staff supervised and to assist with presiding officer and poll clerk
training.

18
Page 20



10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

To have an up-to-date knowledge of legislation pertinent to the role to ensure that the role
is performed effectively and to ensure that members of the public, political parties etc. are
supplied with correct information.

Ensure that senior managers and elected members can maximise the benefits of the
available technology and maintain productivity throughout the working week;

Ensure that members are provided with relevant training to enable them to use technology
to undertake their roles effectively

Operating the systems for live-streaming and recording meetings seeking to resolve
problems where necessary to ensure that the political process is open and accessible

Provide support as and when necessary to enable the elections process to operate
efficiently and effectively.

Actively manage and develop the democracy element of the corporate web site to ensure
that is accessible and supports and promotes the democratic function of the council.

Ensure the regular update of members records, register of interests, council year book,
and diary, past agendas and reports, lists of background papers and minutes index and all
other associated committee administration processes e.g. Standing orders, financial
regulations, scheme of delegation, attendance records, members allowances and
responsibilities to outside bodies.

Work outside normal hours from time to time as the demands of the post and emergencies
dictate.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

19
Page 21



ROLE TITLE: Local Democracy Manager

Permanent
POST ID: tbc
GRADE: Band J — (Revised JD Subject to Job Evaluation)
HOURS: full-time (Monday to Friday)

The purpose of this role

To manage the local democracy team ensuring the democratic process, including elections,
electoral registration and the administration of the democratic function operates efficiently and
effectively and that opportunities for participation in the democratic process at local, regional,
national and European level are maximised.

Expectations and outcomes

To ensure the effective operation of Council, Cabinet, Committees and other meetings which are
integral to the provision of an effective and transparent democracy function.

To ensure the effective management of elections, electoral registration, boundary changes and
associated processes in the county

To ensure the provision of the support to elected members to enable them to fulfil their roles
effectively

Your responsibilities are to:

1)  Manage all elections and referenda which fall wholly or partly within the Monmouthshire
County Council area.

2) Organise the annual canvass for the accurate compilation of the register of electors.

3) Maintain the electoral register for Monmouthshire County Council, including the
management of processes for dealing with absent voters, overseas electors, Crown
servants etc.

4)  Keep under review the boundaries of the communities within the Council’s area and to
give advice on the response to proposals for their constitution, abolition or alteration.

5) Manage the administration of the council’s committee system including the preparation of
agenda’s, and minutes and the administrative support to all members.

6) Oversee the effective co-ordination of all aspects of support to the senior leadership team
7) Manage the budgets for the local democracy service.

8) Maintain a working knowledge of the constitution and legislation pertinent to the role

9) Ensure the provision of technology and systems necessary to ensure that the political

process is open and accessible

20
Page 22



10)

11)

12)

13)
14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

22)

23)

To be responsible for the supervision, training, development, performance management
and health and safety for staff supervised directly in the section and to assist with
presiding officer and poll clerk training.

To have an up-to-date knowledge of legislation pertinent to the role to ensure that the role
is performed effectively and to ensure that members of the public, political parties etc. are
supplied with correct information.

To act as system administrator for the electoral registration and elections computer system
(Pickwick), liaising with the IT department and external supplier to ensure an effective
operation. To undertake system upgrades and the testing of new programmes and to
implement changes arising from boundary reviews and to be responsible for the accuracy
of the database.

Provide advice and support to all members of the council.

Monitor and review the political management arrangements of the council, including,
including the calculation of political balance, as necessary ensuring the legality and probity
of practises and procedures for and at meetings, keeping abreast of and advising on new
forma of political management.

Ensure the regular update of members records, register of interests, council year book,
and diary, past agendas and reports, lists of background papers and minutes index and all
other associated committee administration processes e.g. Standing orders, financial
regulations, scheme of delegation, attendance records, members allowances and
responsibilities to outside bodies.

To be responsible for policy development working with both internal and external partners
to increase voter turnout and registration awareness, including outreach work with schools
and all traditionally hard to engage sections of the community.

Develop a comprehensive and cost effective programme of information/publicity initiatives
to raise awareness about electoral registration and elections, leading to greater levels of
voter registration and public engagement and to project manage publicity campaigns as
and when required.

To be responsible for the preparation of all statistics, benchmarking and other data etc.
relating to the electoral register and electoral results including all information required for
inclusion in reports to the Electoral Commission. To be responsible for improving service
delivery by introducing changes informed by the analysis of data.

To work outside normal hours from time to time as the demands of the post and
emergencies dictate.

Have a commitment to delivering the vision and behaving in accordance with the values of
Monmouthshire County Council.

Maintain safe working practices for self and others, in accordance with the authority’s
policy statement on Health and Safety at Work.

Actively support the principles and practice of equality of opportunity as set out in the
Council’'s Equal Opportunity Policy.

Undertake any ad-hoc duties commensurate with the level of the post.

21
Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



” monmouthshire
\JW sir fynwy

INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS
DECISION RECORDING LOG

DECISION DETERMINED ON: Wednesday, 12 June 2019
DECISION WILL COME INTO EFFECT ON: Friday, 215t June 2019

Decisions made by full cabinet and individual cabinet members are subject to “Call-in” by the appropriate Select Committee. Should a decision be subject to call-in it will not take effect as stated above and will
be presented again at a later date.

Item Title Purpose, Consultation & Author Declaration of Interests Decision
1 MONMOUTHSHIRE ECO | As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
FLEX'STATEMENT OF Agreed and adopted the Council’s “Statement of Intent” and its participation in
INTENT' the ECO Help to Heat Scheme.

Additional Information:

2 ABERGAVENNY As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
TOURIST Approved the move of the Abergavenny Tourist Information Centre to the Market
INFORMATION CENTRE Hall in Abergavenny into a shared office with the Borough Theatre,
Abergavenny.

Additional Information:

Gz abed

3 FLEXIBLE FUNDING: As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
SUPPORTING PEOPLE Approved the transfer of the Supporting People function to Enterprise and
MIGRATION OF Community Development and the subsequent options appraisal of the service
SERVICE TO with a view to identifying opportunities for a more integrated service.
ENTERPRISE AND
COMMUNITY Endorsed the appended spend plans and subsequent contract extensions.
DEVELOPMENT

Additional Information:

4 MONMOUTHSHIRE As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
LOCAL TOILETS The Monmouthshire Local Toilets Strategy is approved and published.
STRATEGY

A working group, consisting of relevant Officers and Members, is formed to
ensure the recommendations in the strategy are implemented.

Additional Information:

5 GIS FUNCTION IN As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
COLLABORATION WITH Members approved the proposals.
NEWPORT CITY
COUNCIL

Additional Information:

6 NON DOMESTIC RATES | As set out in the report None RESOLVED:
APPLICATION FOR Resolved to agree the recommendations of the report.
HARDSHIP RELIEF




Additional Information:

7 STAFFING STRUCTURE
- LOCAL DEMOCRACY
AND BUSINESS
SUPPORT

As set out in the report

None

RESOLVED:

That a new role of Policy and Scrutiny Officer be created.

That 2.47 FTE positions of Democratic Services Officer be deleted.

That 2.0 FTE posts of Committee Officer be created.

That new 1.6 FTE positions of Member Support Officer be created.

That the 0.6 FTE position of Administrative Assistant (Chairman and Leaders)
be deleted.

That 1.0 FTE positions of Members Secretary be deleted.

That the Chairman and Leaders Secretary assumes management responsibility
of member support.

That the Senior Democratic Services Officer be redesignated as Senior
Democracy and Business Support Officer and assumes line management for the
Business Support Team.

That job descriptions and pay bands within the Business Support Team are
consolidated and the two support staff currently part of the Enterprise and
Resources directorates are transferred to this central team.

In the event that officers are not successful in securing a position in the new
structure or through redeployment, that any redundancy costs will be met from
service budgets in the first instance but if this is not possible, that a report be
brought to Cabinet seeking funding from reserves.

Additional Information:

9z abed




Agenda Iltem 6

The Democratic Services Committee were briefed about the proposed changes to staffing in
local democracy and business support being considered as a Single Member Decision on 12th
June. These result in an increase of 1.0 FTE scrutiny officer capacity with costs partially offset
by a reduction of 0.47 FTE capacity support for committees.

The Committee support the recommended increase in scrutiny capacity covered in
recommendation 2.1 of the ICMD report.

However the Committee raised concerns about the potential implications of reducing the
number of officers servicing the council’s select committees citing that the reduction would
place excessive pressure on the remaining staff, particularly during the event of staff sickness
or holiday. They also noted the potential weaknesses in the robustness of ICT which mean it is
advantageous to retain two officers in select committees to provide immediate and accessible
support when needed. It is the view of the committee there should be no reduction in
committee officer capacity.

The committee also raised concerns about the legality of moving to a more concise minute of
select committees as outlined in paragraph 3.4 and asked for a written view from the Head of
Law about what would constitute a legal minute of a meeting. In the event that there are no

concerns from a legal perspective, that the more concise format be trialled for a period of six

months.

The Committee request that the Cabinet member refer the decision on recommendations 2.2
to 2.8 to Cabinet for decision.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7
N,

monmouthshire
COUNTY. COUNCIL

Agenda item 5(iii)
CALL-IN MECHANISM

Call-in

(a) When a decision is made by the executive, an individual member of
the executive or a committee of the executive or an area committee or
under joint arrangements, the decision shall be published, including
where possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main
offices of the Council normally within two days of being made. All
members will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within
the same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the
decision.

(b) That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on
the expiry of five clear working days after the publication of the decision,
unless a select committee objects to it and calls it in.

(c) During that period, the proper officer shall call-in a decision for
scrutiny by the committee if so requested by the chairman or any three
non-executive members and shall then notify the decision-taker of the
call-in. He/she shall call a meeting of the committee on such date as
he/she may determine, where possible after consultation with the
chairman of the committee, and in any case within fifteen working days
of the publication of the decision.

(d) If, having considered the decision, the select committee is still
concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making
person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its
concerns or refer the matter to full Council. If referred to the decision
maker they shall then reconsider, amending the decision or not, before
adopting a final decision.

(e) If following an objection to the decision, the select committee does
not meet in the period set out above, or does meet but does not refer the
matter back to the decision making person or body, the decision shall
take effect on the date of the select meeting, or the expiry fifteen
working days, from the publication of the decision, whichever is the
earlier.

Page 29



(f) If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not
object to a decision which has been made, then no further action is
necessary and the decision will be effective in accordance with the
provision below. However, if the Council does object, the Council will
refer any decision to which it objects back to the decision making person
or body, together with the Council’s views on the decision. That decision
making body or person shall choose whether to amend the decision or
not before reaching a final decision and implementing it. Where the
decision was taken by the executive as a whole or a committee of it, a
meeting will be convened to reconsider within ten_clear working days of
the Council request. Where the decision was made by an individual, the
individual will reconsider within ten clear working days of the Council
request.

(g) If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the
decision back to the decision making body or person, the decision will
become effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the
period in which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is
the earlier.

EXCEPTIONS

(h) In order to ensure that call-in is not abused, nor causes unreasonable
delay, certain limitations are to be placed on its use. These are:

i) only decisions involving expenditure or reductions in service
over a value of £10,000 may be called in;

ii) three members of the council are needed for a decision to be
called in;

CALL-IN AND URGENCY

(i) The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision
being taken by the executive is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any
delay likely to be caused by the call in process would seriously prejudice
the Council’s or the public’s interests. The record of the decision, and
notice by which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the
decision making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and
therefore not subject to call-in. The Head of Paid Service or his/her
nominee must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all
the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency.
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next
available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency.

(j) The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be
monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for
review if necessary.

Page 30



	Agenda
	4 Copy of the Call-In request
	5 Copy of the Cabinet report and decision log
	Decisions 12th-Jun-2019 17.00 Individual Cabinet Member Decisions

	6 Copy of Chief Officer notes on recommendations from Democratic Services Committee
	7 Copy of the Call-In mechanism

